
 

 

 
 
 

HOUSING COMMISSION AGENDA 
Regular Meeting:  May 14, 2014 

Time:  8:00 a.m. 
Nidus Court Recreation Room, 2020 Nidus Court, Union City, CA  94587 

 
The public is welcome at all Housing Commission meetings.  If you wish to speak on a matter NOT on the Agenda, please file a Public Comment card with the Commission Clerk.  Upon 
recognition by the Chairperson during Public Comment, state your name, comments and/or questions.  Anyone wishing to address the Commission on an agenda item or on business 
introduced by the Housing Commission may do so when the Chairperson calls for comments on the agenda item.  Please be brief and limit your comments to the specific subject under 
discussion.   NOTE:  Only matters within the Housing Commission’s jurisdiction may be addressed.   
 
To allow the opportunity for all to speak, a time limit of 3 minutes has been set for public speakers wishing to address the Housing Commission.  The Chairperson has the discretion to 
further limit this time if warranted by the number of speakers. 
 
The Housing Commission Secretary of the Housing Authority of the County of Alameda has, on Thursday, May 8, 2014 duly distributed this Agenda to the Clerk of the Board of 
Supervisors for posting in the office of the Alameda County Administration Building and has posted it on the bulletin board of the Housing Authority of the County of Alameda. 
 
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES:  In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if special assistance to participate in this meeting is needed, please contact the Housing 
Authority office at (510) 727-8511.  Notification at least 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the Housing Authority to make reasonable arrangements.  

 

1. CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL PAGE 

2. CLOSED SESSION 
Conference with Legal Counsel – Anticipated Litigation 
Initiation of Litigation Pursuant to Subdivision (c) of Section 54956.9  (one case) 

 

3. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE APRIL 9, 2014 MEETING ACTION 2 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT 
On matters not on the Agenda 

  

5. NEW BUSINESS    
5-1. Recognize Carol Alves as HACA’s Shining Star PRESENTATION 7 

5-2. Audit for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013 ACTION 9 

5-3. Resolution Amending Capitalization Policy ACTION 15 

5-4. Adjustments to Salaries and Benefits for Management Employees ACTION 20 

5-5. Quarterly Investment Portfolio for the Quarter Ended March 31, 2014 INFORMATION 23 

5-6. Budget Status Report INFORMATION 25 

5-7. Program Activity Report INFORMATION 28 

6. COMMITTEE REPORTS   

7. COMMISSIONER REPORTS    

8. COMMUNICATIONS   

9. ADJOURNMENT   

 

1489 Salmon Way, Hayward, CA  94544 

Tel.  510.538.8876   TDD 510.727.8551   Fax  510.886.1964 



 

2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MINUTES 
April 9, 2014 

 



 

3 

 
 
 

HOUSING COMMISSION MINUTES 
REGULAR MEETING:  APRIL 9, 2014, 

NIDUS RECREATION ROOM, 2020 NIDUS COURT, UNION CITY, CA  94587 
 

SUMMARY ACTION MINUTES 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 

 Call to Order 
Vice Chairperson Biddle called the meeting to order at 8:00 a.m. 

Roll Call 
Present:  Cmrs.  Asher, Biddle, Cashmere, Gacoscos, Haddock, Iosefa, Natarajan, Peixoto, and Steiner. 
Entered after Roll Call:  Cmr. Reed 
Excused: Cmrs. Apodaca and Gerry  

 
2. CLOSED SESSION 
 Conference with Legal Counsel – Anticipated Litigation 

Initiation of Litigation Pursuant to Subdivision (c) of Section 54956.9 (one case) 

 Contract Negotiations with SEIU Local 1021 and the Housing Authority of the County of Alameda 
Labor Negotiations Pursuant to Government Code 54957.6 

 
The Commission adjourned into a closed session at 8:01 a.m. and reconvened in regular session at 8:54 
a.m.  Chairperson Reed reported that there were no reportable actions taken during the closed session.  

 
3. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE FEBRUARY 19, 2014 COMMISSION MEETING  

 Recommendation:  Approve the minutes of the February 19, 2014 meeting as presented. 

Motion/Second:  Natarajan/Biddle. 
Ayes:  All.    Motion passed.   APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED. 

 
4. PUBLIC COMMENT - On matters not on the agenda. 

 None. 

 
5. NEW BUSINESS 
 

5-1. RESOLUTION NO. 01-14 APPROVING A MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING WITH SEIU LOCAL 1021 

 Christine Gouig, Executive Director, stated that the resolution number for this item that is shown in the 
agenda packet is incorrect and noted for the record that the correct resolution number is 01-14.   
 
Ms. Gouig reported that HACA and SEIU Local 1021 (SEIU) have come to an agreement on a 
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) and gave an overview of the labor negotiations.  Charla 
Freckmann, Human Resources Analyst, presented the staff report.  Ms. Freckmann recognized the 
efforts of the SEIU bargaining team, distributed copies of the list of changes to the language of certain 
sections in the MOU to the Commission and to the public, and explained the changes. 

1489 Salmon Way, Hayward, CA  94544 

Tel.  510.538.8876   TDD 510.727.8551   Fax  510.886.1964 



 

4 

 
 Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution No. 01-14 approving a Memorandum of Understanding with SEIU 

Local 1021 for June 7, 2013 – June 4, 2015. 

Public Comment:  Patti Maddon, HACA Housing Inspector, commented on health benefits for 
employees.  Cheri Keeling, HACA Eligibility Technician, commented on the labor negotiations and the 
MOU.  Santos Quintero, SEIU Local 1021 representative, commented on the labor negotiations and the 
MOU.   

Commission Discussion:  Cmr. Natarajan thanked all who participated in the labor negotiations and 
acknowledged the efforts of the HACA management team and Housing Commission. 

Motion/Second:  Natarajan/Biddle. 

Ayes:  All   Motion passed.   APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED. 

 
CONSENT 

 Chairperson Reed called for a motion to move items 5-2., 5-3., 5-6. and 5-7. to a Consent Calendar.  She 
explained that action items placed on a Consent Calendar will be enacted by one motion and noted 
that discussion of any item placed on the Consent Calendar will take place at the request of any 
Housing Commissioner or any person in the audience. 
 
Cmr. Natarajan made a motion to move items 5-2., 5-3., 5-6. and 5-7. to a Consent Calendar.  The 
motion was seconded by Cmr. Biddle.    Ayes:  All. 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

5-2.  ACTION:  RESOLUTION NO. 02-14 ADOPTING THE ANNUAL PUBLIC HOUSING AGENCY PLAN FOR 
THE JULY 1, 2014-JUNE 30, 2015 FISCAL YEAR 
 
5-3.  ACTION:  RESOLUTION NO. 03-14 APPROVING UPDATE TO THE UTILITY ALLOWANCE SCHEDULE 
 
Motion/Second:  Natarajan/Gacoscos. 
Ayes:  All.   Motion passed.    APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED. 
 
5-6.  INFORMATION:  BUDGET STATUS REPORT 

5-7.  INFORMATION:  PROGRAM ACTIVITY REPORT 
 

5-4. ACTION:  2014-2015 BUDGET/AUDIT/NEGOTIATING COMMITTEE 

 Christine Gouig presented the staff report.  The Commission discussed the appointments to the 
Budget/Audit/Negotiating Committee for the fiscal year July 1, 2014 – June 30, 2015.  Cmrs. Biddle and 
Steiner volunteered to serve another term on the Budget/Audit/Negotiating Committee.  Chairperson 
Reed suggested that the Commission re-appoint Cmr. Gerry, who was not present at the meeting, to the 
Committee as well and if needed, make adjustments later if Cmr. Gerry is not able to serve. 
 
Recommendation:   Appoint Cmrs. Biddle, Gerry and Steiner to the Budget/Audit/Negotiating 
Committee for the July 1, 2014 – June 30, 2015 fiscal year. 
 
Motion/Second:  Natarajan/Asher 
Ayes:  All.   Motion passed.    APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED. 



 

5 

 
5-4. ACTION:  2014 SCHOLARSHIP COMMITTEE 

 Christine Gouig presented the staff report.  The Commission discussed the appointments to the 2014 
HACA Scholarship Committee.  Cmrs. Asher, Cashmere and Gacoscos volunteered to serve.  Cmr. 
Natarajan suggested re-appointing Cmr. Apodaca, who was not present at the meeting, to the 2014 
Scholarship Committee and volunteered to serve as an alternate if Cmr. Apodaca is not able to serve.   
 
Recommendation:   Appoint Cmrs. Apodaca, Asher, Cashmere, Gacoscos, and, as an alternate, Cmr. 
Natarajan to the 2014 HACA Scholarship Committee.   
 
Motion/Second:  Asher/Cashmere. 
Ayes:  All.   Motion passed.    APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED. 

 
6. COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 None. 

 
7. COMMISSIONER REPORTS 

 Cmr. Peixoto reported on his attendance at the 2014 NAHRO Legislative Conference in Washington, 
D.C.  Mr. Dion acknowledged the work that Ms. Gouig and the California Association of Housing 
Authorities (CAHA) did on the briefing paper that was distributed at the meetings with the 
representatives in Washington, D.C.  Ms. Gouig commented that housing authorities are making 
progress in advocating for regulatory relief.  She indicated that staff will distribute the CAHA briefing 
paper at the next meeting. 

 
8. COMMUNICATIONS 

 Ms. Gouig announced that the Pacific Southwest Regional Council of NAHRO will be holding its annual 
Spring Conference on May 5-6, 2014 at the Crowne Plaza Hotel in Burlingame and invited the 
Commissioners to attend.   

 
9. ADJOURNMENT 

 There being no further business, Cmr. Reed adjourned the meeting at 9:22 a.m. 

 
Respectfully submitted,   
 
 

  

Melissa Taesali 
Executive Assistant 

 Christine Gouig 
Executive Director/Housing Commission Secretary 

 
Approved: 

 
 

  Ursula Reed 
Housing Commission Chairperson 

 

 

 



 

6 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NEW BUSINESS 
May 14, 2014 

 



 

7 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF ALAMEDA COUNTY 
 

AGENDA STATEMENT 
 

Meeting:  May 14, 2014 
 

 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
In 2006 the Housing Authority created a Communications Committee composed of staff from all 
departments.  The Committee created an “Employee of the Quarter” recognition program to 
acknowledge exceptional individual contributions of HACA employees.  At the end of 2011 the 
Committee decided to revamp the program to allow more time for chosen employees to enjoy 
their recognition.  The Committee re-named the award “HACA’s Shining Star” and extended the 
recognition period to six months, so there will be two Shining Stars per year.   
 
DISCUSSION 
 
The Housing Authority is privileged to have on its staff Carol Alves, an Administrative Clerk in the 
Procurement and Purchasing Department.  Her selection was announced at an all-staff meeting 
held on April 22.  Those who nominated Carol recognized her for her outstanding work in the 
following categories:  1) Acknowledgement from Co-workers and 2) Problem Solving.   Some of 
the comments made by those who nominated Carol were: 

 
“Carol’s innovative ideas have helped to streamline the process for invoice processing.  This 
may sound insignificant; however, the ability of the Procurement Department to meet the 
special needs, projected timelines and last minute rush orders is predicated on the 
development of strong business relationships with our vendors… on several occasions, Carol 
has gone ‘above and beyond’ to keep the department running smoothly…” 
 
“Carol has been responsive to questions, purchase requests and overall assistance with 
purchasing related tasks… Carol is very pleasant to work with and is willing to help out a co-
worker when needed…” 
 
“I am constantly going to Carol with questions about various things related to our operations.  
Many times she could rightfully say to me, ‘I don’t know’ or ‘Go ask so and so’ because some of 
the questions that I ask her deal with things that fall outside of her daily responsibilities but she 
has never turned me away empty-handed.  She takes the initiative to research files, hunt down 
documents, etc. until she either has answers for me or she shares great information that I can 
use to easily figure out what needs to be done.  We are very lucky to have her!” 
 
“Carol has always helped me since Day-1 when I came on board at HACA.  I have come to her 
for many questions, concerns, answers, and she has continuously delivered each and every 
time.  I have watched her work with the staff requesting supplies, and she has constantly 

Subject: Recognize Carol Alves as HACA’s Shining Star for May -  October 2014 
  
Exhibits Attached: None 



 

8 

provided excellent outstanding service and prompt support to the other HACA teams, which is 
appreciated.  I personally value the quality service provided by Carol and I know that we all are 
proud to have her as part of our team!” 

 
Staff recommends that your Housing Commission recognize Carol Alves as “HACA’s Shining Star” 
for May-October 2014.  
 

 



 

9 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 
 

AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
Meeting:  May 14, 2014 

 
Subject: Audit for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2013  
  
Exhibits Attached: Attachment A:  Audit Reports, Letters to the Board of 

Commissioners and Certificate of Actual Modernization Cost  
  
Recommendation: Accept Reports 
  
Financial Statement: None 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Housing Authority’s (HACA) audit for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013 was completed by the 
auditors, Patel & Associates, on March 21, 2014. 
 
Patel & Associates performed a “single audit,” as HACA received over $500,000 of federal funding during 
the fiscal year; the audit was designed and conducted in the areas of financial operation, internal control 
and OMB Circular A-133 compliance. 
 
Included in the audit report is HACA’s non-profit component unit, Preserving Alameda County Housing, 
Inc. (PACH).  Formed in March 2011, PACH was in its second year of operation during audited fiscal year. 
 
DISCUSSION and ANALYSIS 
 
Independent Auditor’s Report (pages 1-3) 
 
In the independent auditor's report addressed to the Board of Commissioners, Patel & Associates opine 
that HACA’s financial statements at the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013 were stated fairly in all material 
respects. 
 
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) (pages 4-10) 
 
The MD&A serves as an introduction to the agency wide financial statements and is an overview of 
HACA’s financial activity.  It highlights changes in our financial position as well as identifies significant 
financial and individual fund issues.  It also discusses the current year's results in comparison to the prior 
year’s, with emphasis on the current year. 
 
The Statement of Net Position presents information about HACA’s financial and capital resources 
(assets) and its obligations to creditors (liabilities), and is similar to a balance sheet. 
 
 



 

10 

 
 
The Authority-Wide Statement of Net Position is shown on Table 1, page 6. 
 

 Total assets were $47.21 million. 
 Total liabilities were $1.70 million. 
 Total assets exceeded total liabilities by $45.51 million (net position) and consist of the 

following: 
  

o $9.50 million are invested in capital assets.  This includes land, building and 
improvements, and furniture and equipment net of accumulated depreciation.  

o $19.17 million are restricted net position and include $11.00 million of 
restricted monies received from the net proceeds of the disposition of Arroyo 
Vista that was loaned to the redeveloper of the site.  The remainder is $8.17 
million of excess Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) program monies restricted for 
payment of housing assistance payments (HAP) to landlords up to the number 
of vouchers authorized by HUD and cannot be used for operations. 

o $16.84 million are unrestricted net position and include the Housing 
Development Fund, Park Terrace (Hayward), Ocean Avenue (Emeryville), and 
Public Housing and HCV reserves. 

 
The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net position reports HACA’s revenues by 
source and type and its expenses by category to substantiate the change in net position (similar 
to net income or loss) for the fiscal year. 
 

 Table 2 on page 7 shows total revenue of $87.50 million compared to $87.85 million in 
2012, a decrease of $0.35 million.   
 

o HUD provided 95% of HACA’s total revenue ($82.81 million) so changes in HUD 
funding greatly impact operating results.  The HCV program funding represents 
the majority of HACA’s total operating subsidies and grants revenue.  HUD 
funding was approximately $1.56 million less than the previous year. 

 
o Rental revenue increased by 67% from the previous year mainly because of the 

change in the rent structure for the 158 former public housing units disposed to 
PACH and converted to Section 8 project-based vouchers. 

 



 

11 

 

         
 

 Total expenses were $87.38 million compared to $87.70 million in 2012, a decrease of $0.32 
million.  The decrease in Administration costs was due primarily to negotiated and non-
negotiated administrative salary and benefit cost reductions.  The largest program expenditure 
as reflected in the chart was for HAP. 

   

                



 

12 

Audited Financial Statements (pages 11-13 and 29-31) 
 
Patel & Associates conducted an audit of the financial statements of each of the programs 
administered by HACA.  Each program is considered a separate accounting entity with its own 
assets, liabilities, net position, revenues and expenses. 
 
Page 11 shows the Statement of Net Position for all programs.  Page 29 shows the individual 
funds that make up the total.   
 
The Low Rent Public Housing program has a total net position of $14.07 million, which includes 
net restricted assets of $11 million and net unrestricted assets of $1.42 million. 
 
The Housing Choice Voucher program has a total net position of $10.38 million, which includes 
net restricted assets of $8.17 million and net unrestricted assets of $2.19 million. 
 
The Housing Development Fund has a balance of $14.29 million. 
 
PACH has assets of $4.09 million, liabilities of $0.35 million and a net position of $3.74 million. 
 
Park Terrace has a balance of $1.44 million and Ocean Avenue has $1.41 million. 
 
Pages 12 and 30 show the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position.  As 
your Commission will note, the change in net position includes depreciation expense.  While 
depreciation is treated as an expense that reduces the results of operations, it does not have an 
impact on restricted or unrestricted net position.  When the depreciation expense and, in some 
instances, changes due to acquisition, disposition and improvements of capital assets are 
excluded, the change in net position balances shows the actual income or loss for the year. 
 
HACA’s Low Rent Public Housing program had operating income of $21,344 and a loss on the 
disposition assets including 100 units to PACH of $766,219. 
 
The HCV program had a net loss of $178,551 (which is a combination of an income of $108,247 
due to funding received in excess of HAP payments made and an operating loss of $286,798. 
 
The Housing Development Fund had a net loss of $234,969. 
 
PACH had a net operating income of $252,905 for the 12-month leasing operations for 58 units 
and about 8 months leasing operations for 100 units.  
 
Park Terrace had a net income of $63,787 and Ocean Avenue a net income of $14,161. 
 
Summary of Auditor’s Reports  
 
In the Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters 
based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards and the Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for each Major Federal Program 
and on Internal Control over Compliance Required by OMB Circular A-133 (pages 33-37), the 
following were reported:  



 

13 

 

 No material weaknesses or significant deficiencies were identified from the testing and 
evaluation of HACA’s internal control system. 

 In testing HACA’s compliance with certain provisions and requirements applicable to the 
programs it administered, the auditors identified instances of noncompliance with 
program requirements for the Housing Choice Voucher Program.  These were 
considered to be significant deficiencies to merit your Commission’s attention but were 
not considered to be material weaknesses. 

 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
 
Section 1 – Summary of Auditor’s Results (page 38) 
Patel & Associates issued an unmodified opinion on HACA’s financial statements.  This means 
that HACA complied with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and that our 
financial statements were presented, in all material aspects, appropriately and fairly.  HACA is 
considered a low-risk auditee based on past experience and overall evaluation of its operations 
and because a single audit has been conducted in prior years where there were no material 
findings. 
 
Sections II and III (page 39-43) – There were no financial statement findings.  While there were 
no material non-compliance issues identified, there are three significant deficiencies reported 
under the federal award findings and questioned costs for the HCV program with regard to 
eligibility and housing quality standards.  These are: 
 

1. Late annual re-examinations for 3 of the 40 sample files reviewed and inaccurate tenant 
income and HAP payments in 3 of the 25 sample files. 
 
Response: The proration of the Admin Fee to only 69% of eligibility has impeded and will 
continue to impede production of re-examinations until Congress increases it to a 
reasonable level.  The housing software, which failed to pass the current HAP payment 
into the rent share calculation and which does not allow an automated check of rent 
share errors (we have to do it manually and can do so for only a sample of our 7,300 
units), is being replaced (the contract award should come before your Commission in 
August/September). 
 

2. Late annual HQS inspections in 2 of the 25 units sampled. 
 

Response: Enhancements to the inspection component of our housing software did not 
work as planned, impacting the scheduling and noticing, and the freezing of an Admin 
Clerk position due to the 69% Admin Fee proration has resulted in one less clerk able to 
schedule and follow-up on inspections. 
 

3. Failure to follow-up on failed HQS inspection items within the required 30 days for 5 of 
the 25 units sampled. 

 
For several months, our software for tracking and monitoring the deficiencies in failed 
inspections stopped functioning, requiring staff to manually review all inspections.  This 
work began as soon as the tracking tool malfunctioned and continued for many months.  



 

14 

It took more time to clear the repairs than allowed by HUD regulation but in each case 
the deficiencies have been cured, the HAP has been abated or the contract terminated.  
New housing software should correct this problem. 

 
The prior year finding regarding timely re-examinations has been partially implemented (page 
43). 
 
Management Letter (Attachment A) 
 
There were two recommendations from the auditor to further strengthen internal control: 
 

1. Bank Reconciliation – added the preparer and reviewer/approver signature lines as 
suggested. 

2. Capitalization Policy for Bulk Purchase – a separate capitalization threshold level has 
been developed and included as a separate agenda item today. 

 
Actual Modernization Cost Certificate 
 
Annual Capital Fund.  Every year, HUD provides Capital Funds to housing authorities for the 
development, financing, and modernization of public housing developments and for 
management improvements.  Upon expenditure of all funds for a given grant year, a housing 
authority must submit to HUD an audited Actual Modernization Cost Certificate (AMCC) for 
review and approval for audit.  After audit verification, HUD approves the AMCC. 
 
The AMCC for the Capital Fund program, prepared by Patel & Associates as part of the audit of 
our fiscal year June 30, 2013 and covering the Capital Fund grants awarded to HACA in calendar 
year 2012, is attached. 
 
The auditor determined that the total cost was $235,378, that all costs have been paid and 
liabilities discharged and that HACA did not incur any budget overruns.  The work funded was 
completed within the fiscal year and the AMCC now closes the grant. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that your Commission accept the audited financial statements and reports for 
all HACA programs for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 and approve the AMCC. 
 

 



 

15 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 
 

AGENDA STATEMENT 
 

Meeting:  May 14, 2014 
 

Subject: Capitalization and Depreciation Policy  
  
Exhibits Attached: - Resolution No. 04-14 

- Revised Policy  
  
Recommendation: Adopt Resolution 
  
Financial Statement: None 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
A capitalization policy is used to set a threshold above which qualifying expenditures are 
recorded as fixed assets and below which they are charged to expense.  On September 11, 
1996, your Commission adopted a Capitalization Policy for the purpose of determining and 
recording expendable and non-expendable property purchased or acquired in connection 
with the development and operation of the housing programs administered by HACA.  The 
policy was revised on September 11, 2002, 1) increasing the threshold from $1,000 or more 
to $3,000 or more and 2) adding a depreciation policy.  In its most recent audit Patel & 
Associates, our auditor, recommended that HACA implement a bulk purchase capitalization 
policy and staff has amended the existing Capitalization Policy in order to do so. 
 
DISCUSSION and ANALYSIS 
 
The cost of property, equipment and other tangible capital assets is essentially a long-term 
prepayment of an expense in advance of the use of the asset.  The cost is prorated over 
that asset’s life as depreciation expense.  Capitalization threshold and useful life policies 
affect whether and how the costs of acquiring property, furniture and equipment are 
capitalized and allocated (expensed) through depreciation to the period benefiting from 
such assets.  They are critical to the fair presentation of an agency’s financial position and 
results of operations.   
 
Under Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP), capitalization of an asset is based 
upon two accounting concepts:  the matching principle and materiality.  The matching 
principle aims to assign costs to the proper period.  In the case of tangible capital assets, 
this is done through depreciation to recognize the use of the asset and can only occur if the 
asset is capitalized and not totally expensed when placed in service.  The concept of 
materiality provides relief from capitalizing and tracking assets that is immaterial to an 
entity’s financial statements.   
 



 

16 

A bulk purchase policy refers to capitalization guidelines to be followed when acquiring 
significant quantities of similar assets in bulk at one time, where the individual unit price 
falls below the capitalization threshold.  This is generally an exception to the capitalization 
policy that occurs when purchasing a material amount of like assets.  Not doing so could 
result in recording a large amount of expenses that impact net income and distort the 
financial statements from year to year. 
 
HACA is revising its Capitalization Policy to address one-time purchases of similar assets, 
which include the acquisition and replacement of blocks of assets (but do not include 
replacement of individual assets as part of a normal maintenance program).  If 1) identical 
items are purchased together, and 2) the value of each individual item is lower than the 
capitalization threshold of $3,000, and 3) the anticipated useful life is more than five years, 
and 4) the total value of the bulk purchase (includes purchase cost, installation cost and all 
other costs to bring the item into service) is $150,000 or more, the purchase will be 
capitalized (see 1.2.C in the attached Policy). 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that your Commission adopt the resolution approving the amended 
Capitalization Policy. 
 



 

17 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 04-14 

 

APPROVING AMENDMENTS TO THE HOUSING AUTHORITY’S CAPITALIZATION POLICY 

 

 WHEREAS, a Capitalization Policy is used to set a threshold to determine whether qualifying 

assets are recorded as fixed assets or are charged to expense; and   
 

WHEREAS, on September 11, 1996, the Housing Authority of the County of Alameda (“HACA”) 

Housing  Commission adopted Resolution No. 31-96 to approve HACA’s Capitalization Policy; and 
 

 WHEREAS,  on September 11, 2002, the HACA Housing Commission adopted Resolution No. 23-

02 to increase the threshold amount as well as to add a Depreciation Policy; and  

 

 WHEREAS, HACA’s Capitalization Policy requires further amendment to include a bulk purchase 

policy for the purpose of addressing one-time purchases of similar assets where the individual unit price 

falls below the capitalization threshold; 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Housing Commission of the Housing Authority of 

the County of Alameda does hereby approve the amended Capitalization Policy as presented at this 

meeting. 

 

 PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Housing Commission of the Housing Authority of the 

County of Alameda on this _______ day of ___________ 2014 by the following vote: 

 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

EXCUSED: 

ABSENT:     

       ________________________________  

       Ursula Reed 

       Housing Commission Chairperson 

Attest: 

 

______________________________________ 

Christine Gouig 

Executive Director/Housing Commission Secretary  Adopted:  __________________ 

 



 

18 

Housing Authority of the County of Alameda 
Capitalization and Depreciation Policy 

 

 
1.1 PURPOSE  
 

The purpose of this Capitalization Policy is to determine, distinguish and record 
materials and non-expendable equipment and personal property purchased or acquired 
in connection with the development, management, and maintenance of public housing 
developments owned or operated by the Housing Authority.  

 
1.2 DEFINITION  
 

A. If the initial cost of a piece of equipment and/or other personal property is  
three thousand dollars ($3,000.00) or more and the anticipated useful life of said 
equipment or property is more than five (5) years, the same shall be capitalized 
and recorded as non-expendable equipment and charged as a capital 
expenditure.  The cost of a capital asset includes all costs associated with its 
acquisition, including delivery and installation costs. 

 
B. If the initial cost of the piece of equipment and/or personal property is less than 

three thousand dollars ($3,000.00), or its useful life is less than five (5) years 
regardless of cost, the same shall be treated and recorded as expendable 
property and chargeable to current expenses. 
 

C. When similar assets are acquired in bulk, the individual items purchased may be 
capitalized and depreciated over their useful life, provided the following criteria 
are met:  

 
(1) identical items are purchased together; and 

(2) the cost of each individual item is less than $3,000; and 

(3) the useful life is more than five (5) years; and 

(4) the total cost is $150,000 or more. 
 

D. For the purposes of this Policy, “capital assets” includes both purchased assets 
and assets acquired under capital leases where the lease satisfies the criteria for 
classification as a lease-to-own arrangement. 

 
E. Costs associated with the initial acquisition of custom data-processing software, 

meeting the criteria in A above and expected to provide future benefits, are 
capitalized until the software is substantially complete and ready for productive 
use.  Later modifications that enhance the service potential of the software are 
considered betterments and are capitalized and depreciated from the time they 



 

19 

are ready for productive use.  Training, maintenance and other continuing 
support costs associated with the software are expensed as incurred.  

 
F. The Executive Director, or his/her designee, is authorized and directed to 

determine whether each piece of equipment or other personal property that is 
acquired by the Housing Authority in connection with the development, 
management and maintenance of properties owned or operated by the Housing 
Authority, shall be classified as material or non-expendable, as defined in A, B 
and C above.  The Executive Director is further directed to ensure that the 
determination is documented in the appropriate records of the Housing 
Authority and retained for the information and guidance of its personnel and for 
audit purposes. 

 
1.3 USEFUL LIFE OF ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION 
 
Housing Authority management has the responsibility to estimate useful or service lives and 
residual values of depreciable (capitalized) assets.  The following useful lives will be used in the 
calculation of depreciation. 
 

CAPITAL ASSET CATEGORY USEFUL LIFE-YEARS 

Buildings 27.5 years 

Building Improvements 10 years 

Dwelling Structure 10 years 

Non-dwelling Structure 10 years 

Dwelling and Non-dwelling Equipment 5 years 

Furniture, Machinery and Equipment 5 years 

Computer Hardware 5 years 

Computer Software 5 years 

Telecommunication Equipment 5 years 

 
For depreciation purposes, the salvage value of assets is estimated to be immaterial and, 
therefore, assets shall be depreciated at 100% of cost.  All depreciable assets shall be 
depreciated over their useful life using the straight-line method with a half-year convention, 
whereby one-half year of depreciation will be recorded in the year of acquisition and the other 
half in the final year of its useful life. 
 
1.4 DISPOSAL OF FIXED ASSETS 
 
Disposals of fixed assets may occur by sale, trade-in, destruction, donation, loss or 
abandonment.  The difference between the net proceeds on disposal of a tangible capital asset 
and the net book value of the asset should be accounted for as revenue or loss in the income 
statement.   



 

20 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 
 

AGENDA STATEMENT 
 

Meeting:  May 14, 2014    
 

Subject: Adjustments to Management Salaries, Benefits and Furlough Days 
  
Exhibits Attached: None 
  
Recommendation: Adopt Recommended Adjustments 
  
Financial Statement: The cost of reinstating management benefits and reducing the number 

of mandatory furlough days to four is approximately $38,225; the cost 
of a management COLA will not be known until a survey is completed 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
For the past several fiscal years it has been necessary for HACA to implement various reductions 
in benefits and salary freezes for all employees in order to balance the budget in light of HUD 
funding reductions.  HACA has typically made decisions regarding management employee 
reductions separate from the represented employees and subsequent to the settlement of 
union negotiations.  At your March 2014 meeting your Commission approved a successor 
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with SEIU Local 1021 for the term of June 7, 2013 
through June 4, 2015.  That MOU contained provisions with respect to:  (1) four unpaid furlough 
days, (2) a 2.5% cost of living adjustment, and (3) the thawing of the previously-imposed wage 
freeze and elevation into the step an employee would have been in absent the freeze. 
 
Subsequent to your Commission’s approval of the MOU, the Executive Director met with the 
management staff to discuss restoration of certain benefits, matching of furlough days, merit 
increases and cost of living adjustments.  Below are the provisions that were agreed to by the 
parties and the Executive Director recommends that your Commission approve them. 
 
DISCUSSION and ANALYSIS 
 
1.  Unpaid Furlough Days 
HACA has typically maintained a practice of parity between represented staff and management 
staff as to the number of furlough days.  For example, at the December 2012 Housing 
Commission meeting, you authorized the Executive Director to develop a schedule of unpaid 
furlough days for management employees and five furlough days were agreed to by the 
managers.  However, the MOU that your Commission approved at your March 2013 meeting 
required only three unpaid furlough days for represented employees, so at your April 2013 
meeting you authorized the Executive Director to reduce the number of unpaid furlough days 
for managers to three and to make adjustments as appropriate for employees who had already 
taken more than three. 
 
Similarly, at your December 2013 Housing Commission meeting, you authorized the Executive 
Director to develop a schedule of unpaid furlough days for management employees and again 



 

21 

five furlough days were agreed to by the managers.  The MOU that your Commission approved 
at your March 2014 meeting required only four unpaid furlough days for represented 
employees.  The Executive Director recommends that you authorize her to reduce the furlough 
days for management employees to four and to make adjustments as appropriate for 
employees who have already taken more than four.  As is the case with represented employees, 
one of the furlough days will be created by not earning a floating holiday for the Fourth of July. 
 
2.  Cafeteria Plan 
HACA’s Personnel Rules provide for a management benefit in the form of a cafeteria plan with a 
taxable and non-taxable component.  This cafeteria plan has been part of HACA’s management 
compensation since 1991 but was suspended in 2012 as a cost savings measure.  It is now being 
recommended that the cafeteria plan be reinstated as follows: 
 
 a.  Personnel Rule 3.17.12 Taxable Benefit 

Personnel Rule 3.17.12 provides for an $800/year taxable benefit.  This benefit is 
administered on a calendar year basis and is not constrained by IRS regulations 
because the benefit is taxed.  As such, staff recommends that this benefit be re-
instated for calendar year 2014 commencing July 1, 2014, and thereafter normally 
commencing with the beginning of every calendar year.  This benefit is used for 
reimbursement of job-related expenses such as membership dues in professional 
organizations, tools and technology (typically, computers), mass transit expenses, 
health and wellness programs and professional publications/subscriptions. 

 
 b.  Personnel Rule 3.17.9 Non-taxable Benefit 

Personnel Rule 3.17.9 provides for a $1500/year non-taxable benefit, which is also 
administered on a calendar year basis but is regulated by the IRS Code.  As such, 
employees can only participate in this benefit at the commencement of the benefit 
plan year.  Therefore, it is recommended that the reinstatement of this benefit be 
deferred until January 1, 2015, the beginning of the next plan year.  Thereafter, 
participation will commence regularly with the beginning of every calendar year in 
accordance with IRS regulations.  This benefit is used for uninsured medical 
expenses, payment of the dependent coverage premium under the life insurance 
plan and dependent care expenses.  Now that HACA has a voluntary medical Flexible 
Spending Account (FSA) program for all employees, both management and 
represented, this component of the cafeteria plan will be administered in accordance 
with the rules for the FSA program. 
 

3.  Salaries 
Consistent with the wage freezes that were negotiated in the previous MOUs covering 
represented staff, a freeze applying to all forms of salary increases was also applied to 
management staff.  HACA’s Management Compensation Policy provides for annual cost of living 
adjustments, merit increases and a comparability review of management positions every three 
years.  Cost of living adjustments and merit increases for management employees have been 
frozen since June 2011 and the last comparability review of management positions was 
conducted in 2009. 
 
It is now being recommended that these components of the Management Compensation Policy 
be reinstated as follows: 



 

22 

 
 a.  Cost of Living Adjustment 

The annual cost of living adjustment for management employees is not negotiated 
with the employees.  Instead, it is determined by surveying the cost of living 
adjustments granted to management employees in the established HACA 
comparability pool (i.e., nearby housing authorities and local governments), 
calculating the average of those adjustments and applying them to both the 
employee salaries and to HACA’s management salary range structure.  HACA staff 
usually conducts the survey in the summer or fall of each year because many public 
agencies resolve their union negotiations and adopt their annual budgets prior to 
granting management employee increases, so their cost of living adjustments are not 
known until July/August.  Staff recommends that the practice of annually surveying 
the comparability pool for management cost of living adjustments be restored; the 
survey results and a recommendation will be brought back to you for your approval. 
 

b.  Merit Increases 
Merit increases for management employees are administered on a fiscal year basis 
and are determined by HACA’s pay for performance plan for managers and the 
management salary range structure as contained in the Management Compensation 
Policy.  Consistent with the wage freeze for represented employees, merit increases 
for management employees have also been frozen (with the exception approved by 
your Commission for those management employees whose salaries were not yet at 
the control point within the applicable range).  Management merit increases have 
been subject to a freeze since June 2011.  Staff recommends resuming the merit 
increase cycle with the 2014/2015 Fiscal Year. 
 

c.  Equity/Comparability Survey 
The Housing Authority’s Management Compensation Policy was originally adopted by 
the Housing Commission in 1986, reviewed and revised in 2003 and again in 2009.  
One component of this policy includes a triennial comparability survey comparing 
HACA’s management positions to similar positions within an established 
comparability pool.  The survey is done to insure that HACA management positions 
are assigned a pay range at the median (middle) rate of comparable positions within 
the pool or are tied to another classification internally whose pay range has been 
assigned through the survey process.  The last management comparability review 
was conducted in 2009.  Staff recommends resuming the practice of reviewing 
management positions every three years.  Staff will issue a Request for Proposal for a 
consultant to do the review. 

 

 



 

23 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 
 

AGENDA STATEMENT 
 

Meeting:  May 14, 2014 
 

Subject: Quarterly Investment Portfolio Report 
  
Exhibits Attached: Investment Portfolio Report for Quarter ended March 31, 2014 

  

Recommendation: Receive Report 

  

Financial Statement: $16,920,211 Invested at an Average Monthly Yield ranging from 0.06% 
to 0.26% (excluding FSS Escrow Participant Accounts) 

 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Public Agencies are required to file an investment policy with their governing boards and to 
provide quarterly financial reports on the status of the Agency’s investments and to certify to 
their compliance with the approved investment policy. 
 
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
The investment portfolio report that is attached reflects the investments at March 31, 2014 for 
each program that HACA administers.  
 
The Housing Choice Voucher program has a total investment of $4,999,693, which is 30% of the 
total investment portfolio.  The amounts available for investment continue to decrease as HUD 
transitions to the cash management process and the re-establishment of HUD-held program 
reserves. 
 
The Housing Development Fund has a total investment of $9,200,746, which is 54% of the total 
investment portfolio.  Approximately 73% of its portfolio is in the State of California Local 
Agency Investment Fund (LAIF).  Progress payments for the building remodel will decrease the 
amount available for future reinvestments.   
 
The Public Housing program has a total investment of $999,932, which is 6% of the total 
investment portfolio.     
 
PACH, Ocean Avenue and Park Terrace investments are 3%, 1% and 6% of the total investment, 
respectively. 
 
The FSS Participant Escrow Accounts are maintained in a savings account, in accordance with 
HUD regulations, at Union Bank. 
 
 



 

24 

Housing Authority of Alameda County 
Investment Portfolio 

For the Quarter ended March 31, 2014 
 

 
 
 



 

25 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BUDGET STATUS 
 REPORT 



 

26 

Housing Authority of Alameda County 
HOUSING CHOICE VOUCHER 

Administrative Budget Status Report FYE 2013-2014 
March 2014 

 

 
 

FY 2014 - HCV Budgeted @ Actual @ OVER PROJECTED SCH. 2013 2014

OPERATING BUDGET 3/31/2014 3/31/2014 (UNDER) TO 6/30/14 NO. BUDGET BUDGET DIFFERENCE

INCOME

Investment Income 2,700 1,455 (1,245) 1,940 A1 3,600 3,600 0

Misc. Income 259,500 264,228 4,728 334,759 A1 208,000 346,000 138,000

Administrative Fee Income 4,937,198 4,679,532 (257,666) 6,394,336 A 6,905,311 6,582,930 (322,381)

TOTAL INCOME 5,199,398 4,945,214 (254,183) 6,731,036 7,116,911 6,932,530 (184,381)

EXPENSES

Administration

Salaries (2,893,120) (2,804,827) 88,294 (3,646,275) B-1& 2 (4,362,145) (3,857,494) 504,651

Other Admin. (985,124) (908,048) 77,076 (1,210,731) C-1&2 (1,161,477) (1,313,499) (152,022)

Total (3,878,245) (3,712,875) 165,370 (4,857,006) (5,523,622) (5,170,993) 352,629

General

Insurance (136,755) (104,201) 32,553 (138,935) E (201,590) (182,340) 19,250

Employee Benefits (1,504,423) (1,555,921) (51,498) (2,074,561) (2,224,694) (2,005,897) 218,797

Miscellaneous 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total (1,641,177) (1,660,122) (18,945) (2,213,496) (2,426,284) (2,188,237) 238,047

Total Routine Expenses (5,519,422) (5,372,997) 146,425 (7,070,502) (7,949,906) (7,359,229) 590,676

Capital Expenditures 0 0 0 0 D2 0 0 0

TOTAL EXPENSES (5,519,422) (5,372,997) 146,425 (7,070,502) (7,949,906) (7,359,229) 590,676

Income (Deficit) Unfunded 2012 FSS (1/2 year) - Use of Reserve (158,607)

Income (Deficit) UNSPECIFIED BUDGET REDUCTION (674,387) (426,699)

NET INCOME (DEFICIT) (320,024) (427,783) (107,758) (339,466) (832,994) (426,699) 406,295

Unrestricted Net Assets @ 6/30/13 2,478,875$ 

Projected Income (Deficit) @ 6/30/14 (339,466)

Projected Unrestricted Net Assets @ 6/30/14 2,139,409$ 



 

27 

Housing Authority of Alameda County 
PUBLIC HOUSING 

Budget Status Report FYE 2013-2014 
March 2014 

 

FY 2014 - PH YTD BUDGET YTD ACTUALS

OVER/  

(UNDER) Projected SCH. 2013 2014  

OPERATING BUDGET 3/31/2014 3/31/14 BUDGET to 6/30/14 NO. BUDGET BUDGET Difference

INCOME

Dwelling Rentals 292,909 242,057 (50,852) 322,743 A-1 533,610 390,545 (143,065)

Office Rental (Mission Blvd-net) 35,016 0 (35,016) 0 A 0 46,688 46,688

Investment Income  1,650 1,088 (562) 1,450 A 2,200 2,200 0

Misc. Income 53,438 56,435 2,997 75,246 A-1 135,764 71,250 (64,514)

Transfer of Reserves from Ocean Ave 0 500,000 (500,000)

Operating Subsidy 154,481 400,564 246,082 205,974 A-1 380,579 205,974 (174,605)

Asset Reposition Fee 138,928 0 (138,928) 185,237 A-1 199,020 185,237 (13,783)

Capital Grant 22,169 0 (22,169) 29,559 A-1 258,378 29,559 (228,819)

TOTAL INCOME 698,591 700,143 1,551 820,210 2,009,551 931,454 (1,078,096)

 

EXPENSES  

 

Administration  

Salaries (169,663) (168,345) 1,318 (218,848) B-1& 2 (233,093) (226,217) 6,876

Other Admin. (21,622) (36,375) (14,752) (48,500) C-1 (116,368) (28,830) 87,538

Total (191,285) (204,719) (13,434) (267,347) (349,461) (255,047) 94,414

 

Tenant Services  

Resident Managers (4,125) (1,000) 3,125 (5,500) (5,500) (5,500) 0

Recreation (5,625) 0 5,625 (7,500) (7,500) (7,500) 0

Total (9,750) (1,000) 8,750 (13,000) (13,000) (13,000) 0

 

Utilities  

Water (37,561) (26,883) 10,677 (35,845) (74,000) (50,081) 23,919

Electricity (14,250) (9,760) 4,490 (13,013) (19,000) (19,000) 0

Gas (1,050) (1,082) (31) (1,442) (2,600) (1,400) 1,200

Sewage (19,800) (10,734) 9,066 (14,312) (47,600) (26,400) 21,200

Total (72,661) (48,459) 24,204 (64,612) (143,199) (96,881) 46,318
 

Maintenance  

Salaries (52,487) (55,333) (2,845) (71,933) B-2 (69,983) (69,983) (0)

Materials (38,957) (19,740) 19,217 (26,319) D (63,960) (51,942) 12,018

Contract Costs (276,613) (368,946) (92,333) (341,928) D (594,158) (368,818) 225,340

Total (368,057) (444,019) (75,961) (440,180) (728,101) (490,743) 237,357
 

General  

Insurance (30,811) (24,601) 6,212 (32,801) E (80,712) (41,081) 39,631

Tax-In Lieu Of (22,025) (22,024) 1 (29,366) (39,041) (29,366) 9,675

Employee Benefits (115,518) (68,533) 46,985 (91,377) (154,569) (154,024) 545

Collection Loss (750) 0 750 0 (1,000) (1,000) 0

Miscellaneous (750) 0 750 0 (1,000) (1,000) 0

Total (169,854) (115,158) 54,697 (153,544) (276,322) (226,472) 49,850

 

Total Routine Expenses (811,607) (813,354) (1,745) (938,683) (1,510,083) (1,082,143) 427,940
 

Capital Expenditure-exterior renovation of Emery Glen (500,000) 500,000
 

TOTAL EXPENSES (811,607) (813,354) (1,745) (938,683) (2,010,083) (1,082,143) 927,940
 

NET INCOME (DEFICIT) (113,016) (113,211) (194) (118,474) (533) (150,689) (150,156)

 

Unrestricted Net Assets @ 6/30/13 1,378,834$ 

Projected Income/(Deficit) @ 6/30/14 (118,474)

Projected Unrestricted Net Assets @ 6/30/14 1,260,360$ 



 

28 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PROGRAM ACTIVITY  
REPORT 

 



 

29 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 
 

AGENDA STATEMENT 
Meeting:  May 14, 2014 

 
Subject: Programs Activity Report 
  
Exhibits Attached: Section 8 Contract Report; Section 8 Average Contract Rent Report; 

Fraud Payments Report; Landlord Rental Listing Report; FSS Program 
Monthly Report 

  
Recommendation: Receive Report 
  
Financial Statement: None 

 
SECTION 8 HOUSING CHOICE VOUCHERS 
 

 Lease-Up:  As of May 1, 2014, the Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher program had 6,119 
units under contract.  The fiscal year-to-date lease-up average is 99.14% units.  The budget 
authority use average through March 2014 is 103.8%. 

 

 Program Utilization:  As of May 1, 2014, the average HAP subsidy was $1,041 and the 
average tenant-paid rent portion was $418 for an average Contract Rent of $1,459. 
 
 As of May 1, 2014, HACA had 127 outgoing billed portability contracts (i.e., HACA 

voucher holders who are housed in another housing authority’s jurisdiction).   
 As of May 1, 2014, HACA billed other housing authorities, primarily the Oakland Housing 

Authority, for 1,139 incoming portability contracts.  HACA receives only 80% of the HUD-
authorized Administrative Fee for billed incoming portability contracts.   

 

 Section 8 Contract Report:  A copy of the Contract Report is attached. 
 

 Fraud / Debt Recovery:  HACA retained $4,695.71 in fraud and debt recovery payments for 
the month of March 2014.  A total of $42,633.57 was retained over the last six months. 
 

 Landlord Rental Listings:  As of May 1, 2014, there were 1,643 landlords with properties in 
HACA’s jurisdiction utilizing the GoSection8 rental listing service.  There were no new 
landlords added to the Section 8 program this month.  There were 12 active properties 
listed as of May 1, 2014. 

 
FAMILY SELF SUFFICIENCY (FSS) 
 
The FSS Department received a record-breaking 28 applications for this year’s HACA scholarship 
program.  The Scholarship Committee will be meeting soon to review those applications and 
plans to make awards at the August Commission meeting. 
 



 

30 

HUD has published this year’s Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA) for FSS Program 
Coordinators.  HACA is eligible to submit an application to renew its four current positions.  FSS 
staff will submit our application by the May 29 deadline.  HUD announced that, beginning next 
year, it intends to rate and rank applicants based on their FSS participants’ increased earned 
income as increasing earned income is a primary goal of the FSS program.  
 
PUBLIC HOUSING 
 

 Occupancy:  As of May 1, 2014, the Public Housing program had 67 of 72 units leased and 
had a 92.55% fiscal year-to-date lease up rate. 



 

31 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 
Section 8 Contract and HAP Report for the month of:  April 2014 

 

 
Certificates Vouchers 

April 2014 
TOTAL 

 April 
2013 

April 
2012 City Number HAP* Number HAP** Number HAP 

 

Albany 0  $0  32  $33,280  32  $33,280  
 

36 39 

Castro 
Valley 11  $9,691  217  $225,680  228  $235,371  

 
238 247 

Dublin 2  $1,762  359  $373,360  361  $375,122  
 

335 301 

Emeryville 6  $5,286  114  $118,560  120  $123,846  
 

113 114 

Fremont 28  $24,668  1,217  $1,265,680  1,245  $1,290,348  
 

1,328 1,426 

Hayward 115  $101,315  2,287  $2,378,480  2,402  $2,479,795  
 

2,557 2,577 

Newark 3  $2,643  249  $258,960  252  $261,603  
 

278 282 

Pleasanton 4  $3,524  122  $126,880  126  $130,404  
 

134 160 

San 
Leandro 18  $15,858  1,498  $1,557,920  1,516  $1,573,778  

 
1,457 1,423 

San 
Lorenzo 2  $1,762  229  $238,160  231  $239,922  

 
231 222 

Union City 5  $4,405  814  $846,560  819  $850,965  
 

854 769 

TOTALS 194  $170,914.00 7,138 $7,423,520.00 7,332 $7,594,434.00 
 

7,561 7,560 

 
 
*Based on an average April Housing Assistance Payment (HAP) of $881 per certificate contract. 
 
**Based on an average April Housing Assistance Payment (HAP) of $1040 per voucher contract. 



 

32 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA 

Section 8 Average Contract Rent Report for the Month of: April 2014 

 

City Number of 
HAP 

Contracts 

Average 
Contract 

Rent 

Average HAP 
Paid by 
HACA 

Average 
Rent Paid by 

Family 

Average Family-
Paid Rent as a 
Percentage of 

Average 
Contract Rent 

Albany 31 $1,317 $1,024 $293 22% 

Castro Valley 215 $1,385 $970 $415 30% 

Dublin 358 $1,618 $1,225 $393 24% 

Emeryville 113 $1,233 $863 $370 30% 

Fremont 1,231 $1,591 $1,122 $470 30% 

Hayward 2,301 $1,384 $989 $395 29% 

Newark 251 $1,833 $1,302 $530 29% 

Pleasanton 122 $1,372 $974 $397 29% 

San Leandro 1,492 $1,379 $989 $390 28% 

San Lorenzo 228 $1,700 $1,249 $451 27% 

Union City 734 $1,650 $1,167 $483 29% 

 

 
*Some rents may vary by $1 due to rounding



 

33 

DEBT COLLECTIONS
2013-2014

FYE 06/30/14

JULY AUGUST SEPTEMBER OCTOBER NOVEMBER DECEMBER JANUARY FEBRUARY MARCH APRIL MAY JUNE GRAND

TOTALS

DAMAGE CLAIMS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $100.00 $100.00

FRAUD REPAYMENTS $1,738.00 $2,321.84 $555.05 $27,855.45 $1,145.16 $2,273.22 $1,569.75 $5,094.28 4,695.71$   $47,248.46

TOTALS $1,738.00 $2,321.84 $555.05 $27,855.45 $1,145.16 $2,273.22 $1,569.75 $5,094.28 $4,795.71 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $47,348.46



 

34 

 
 

Monthly
5/31/2013 7/1/2013 8/5/2013 9/3/2013 10/1/2013 11/1/2013 12/2/2013 1/2/2014 2/3/2014 3/3/2014 4/1/2014 5/1/2014

Registered Landlords 1583 1583 1588 1592 1598 1604 1613 1618 1621 1625 1628 1643

Landlords New to 

Section 8 Program 0 0 5 3 4 2 6 5 4 2 2 0

Active Properties 

Listed 39 25 23 16 18 16 26 20 19 20 10 12

Landlord Rental Listing Report

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

1550

1560

1570

1580

1590

1600

1610

1620

1630

1640

1650

Landlords New to
Section 8

Program

Active Properties
Listed



 

35 

  

To:  Christine Gouig, Executive Director 

From:  Daniel Taylor, Special Programs Manager 

Re:  FSS Program Summary 

CC:  Ron Dion, Linda Evans, Phyllis Harrison, Mary Sturges, Eli Isaacs 

Date:  May 2, 2014  

Program Summary April 2014 
Total Clients Under Contract: 138 
Graduates: 1 
Escrow Disbursed: $18,910.83 
Ports In: 0 
Ports Out: 0 
Terminations: 1 
New Contracts: 8 
 
FSS PROGRAM NEWS:  
 
2014 HACA Scholarship Program 
 
Twenty-eight FSS participants and/or household members submitted their applications for 
the 2014 HACA scholarship. This is a record number of FSS participant applications for a 
scholarship program year. 
 
FSS Outreach and Marketing 
 
The FSS program has a newly-designed flyer that will be used for all upcoming outreach as 
it relates to the MDRC study. With assistance from our IT department, HACA’s website has 
been updated with current FSS information as well. 
 
Workshops 
 
Saturday, April 19, 2014, Safe America Credit Union gave a free Credit Report / Credit 
Scores and Identity Theft workshop. During this workshop, participants learned: 
 

 How to get a free copy of a credit report 
 How to dispute items on a credit report for free 
 Three steps to building an excellent credit score 
 The inside scoop on credit scores – what you do that helps or hurts your credit score  

 
 



 

36 

 
2015 FSS NOFA     
 
HUD published the 2015 Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA) for the Family Self-
Sufficiency program. FSS staff will work with Senior Administrative Analyst, Jennifer Cado, 
to complete the application for submission by the May 29 deadline. 
 
Next FSS Orientations 
 

 Wednesday, May 21, 2014 
     10:00 a.m. to 12:00 p.m. 

 
 Thursday, May 22, 2014 

           6:00 p.m. to 8:00 p.m. 
 
Upcoming Workshops 
 

 Safe America 
 Money Management/Budgeting and Checking Accounts 

           Saturday, May 17, 2014 
           10:00 a.m. to 12:00 p.m. 

 
 Unity Council 

 Homeownership 
           Saturday, June 28, 2014 
           10:00 a.m. to 12:00 p.m.  

 
 
Referrals= Case Management = 54 
 

 

 




















































































































	AGENDA - MAY 14, 2014
	MINUTES OF THE APRIL 9, 2014 MEETING
	5-1.  RECOGNIZE CAROL ALVES AS SHINING STAR
	5-2. AUDIT FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDING 06-30-13
	Attachment A:  Letter to Board of Commissioners
	Attachment A:  Audited Financial Statements
	Attachment A:  Statement of Actual Project Costs
	Attachment A:  Letter to Board of Commissioners

	5-3.  Amended Capitalization Policy
	Exhibit:  Resolution No. 04-14
	Exhibit:  Edit to Capitalization Policy

	5-4.  Adjustments to Management Salaries, Benefits and Furlough Days
	5-5.  Investment Portfolio Report
	5-6.  Budget Status Report
	Report:  HCV
	Report:  Public Housing

	5-7.  Program Activity Report
	Report:  Programs Activity
	Report:  Section 8 Contract and HAP 
	Report:  Section 8 Average Contract Rent
	Report:  Debt Collections
	Report:  Landlord Rental Listing
	Report:  FSS Program Summary


